CÔNG TY CP CHỨNG KHOÁN SÀI GÒN - HÀ NỘI SAIGON – HANOI SECURITIES JSC.,

CÔNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Số/No:791 /2025/CV-SHS

Hà Nội, ngày 30 tháng 05 năm 2025 Hanoi, May 30th, 2025

CÔNG BÓ THÔNG TIN BẮT THƯỜNG EXTRAORDINARY INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

- Kính gửi/To: Ủy ban Chứng khoán Nhà nước/ State Securities Committee
 - Sở Giao dịch Chứng khoán Việt Nam/ Vietnam Stock Exchange
 - Sở Giao dịch Chứng khoán Hà Nội/ Hanoi Stock Exchange
 - Sở Giao dịch Chứng khoán Thành phố Hồ Chí Minh/ Hochiminh Stock Exchange
- 1. Tên tổ chức/Name of organization: Công ty Cổ phần Chứng khoán Sài Gòn Hà Nội/ Saigon
- Hanoi Securities JSC.,
- Mã chứng khoán/Mã thành viên/ Stock code/ Broker code: SHS/069
- Địa chỉ/Address: Tầng 1-5, Tòa nhà Unimex Hà Nội, số 41, Ngô Quyền, Hàng Bài, Hoàn Kiếm, Hà Nội/ Floor 1st-5th, Unimex Ha Noi Building, No. 41, Ngo Quyen street, Hang Bai ward, Hoan Kiem district. Hanoi
- Fax: 024.38 181.688 - Điện thoại liên hệ/Tel.: 024.38 181.888
- E-mail: congbothongtin@shs.com.vn
- 2. Nội dung thông tin công bố/Contents of disclosure:

Ngày 29/05/2025, Hội đồng quản trị Công ty Cổ phần Chứng khoán Sài Gòn – Hà Nội ban hành Nghị Quyết số 03-2025/NQ-HĐQT về việc sửa đổi Điều lệ và áp dụng Điều lệ sửa đổi.

On May 29th, 2025, the Board of Directors of Saigon - Hanoi Securities Joint Stock Company issued Resolution No. 03-2025/NQ-HĐQT to amend the Charter and apply the amended Charter.

(Căn cứ quy định tại Điểm e, Khoản 1, Điều 11; Khoản 1, Điều 15 và Khoản 1, Điều 23 của Thông tư số 96/2020/TT-BTC ngày 16/11/2020 của Bộ trưởng Bộ Tài Chính hướng dẫn công bố thông tin trên Thị trường Chứng khoán.

Pursuant to the provisions in Point e, Clause 1, Article 11; Clause 1, Article 15; Clause 1, Article 23 of Circular No. 96/2020/TT-BTC dated November 16, 2020 of the Minister of Finance guiding information disclosure on the Stock Market.)

3. Thông tin này đã được công bố trên trang thông tin điện tử của công ty vào ngày 30/05/2025 tại đường dẫn/*This information was published on the company's website on May 30th, 2025 as in the link:*

https://www.shs.com.vn/News/2025530/1012748/shs-cbtt-nghi-quyet-cua-hdqt-ve-viec-sua-doi-dieu-le.aspx

https://www.shs.com.vn/News/2025530/1012749/shs-cbtt-nghi-quyet-cua-hdqt-ve-viec-sua-doi-dieu-le.aspx

Chúng tôi xin cam kết các thông tin công bố trên đây là đúng sự thật và hoàn toàn chịu trách nhiệm trước pháp luật về nội dung các thông tin đã công bố/We hereby certify that the information provided is true and correct and we bear the full responsibility to the law.

Tài liệu đính kèm/Attached documents:

- Nghị Quyết số 03-2025/NQ-HĐQT. Resolution No. 03-2025/NQ-HĐQT.
- Điều lệ đã sửa đổi.
 Amended Charter.

Đại diện tổ chức/Organization representative Người được ủy quyền công bố thông tin Person authorized to disclose information

Trần Thị Vân

SAIGON – HANOI SECURITIES JSC

No. 03-2025/NQ-HĐQT

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM Independence – Freedom - Happiness

Hanoi, May 29th, 2025

RESOLUTION

(Re: Amendment of SHS Charter and application of the amended SHS Charter)

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SAIGON - HANOI SECURITIES JSC

Pursuant to:

- The Law on Enterprises no. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17th, 2020 and its guiding, amending, supplementing, and enforcing documents;
- The Law on Securities no.54/2019/QH14 dated November 26th, 2019 and its guiding, amending, supplementing, and enforcing documents;
- The Decree No. 155/2020/NĐ-CP dated December 31st, 2020, issued by the Government, detailing the implementation of certain articles of the Law on Securities;
- The Charter of Saigon Hanoi Securities Joint Stock Company (the Company/SHS), approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders (GSM) and effective from April 10th, 2025;
- SHS GSM's Resolution no. 01-2024/NQ-ĐHĐCĐ dated May 15th, 2024;
- SHS GSM's Resolution no. 01-2025/NQ-ĐHĐCĐ dated April 10th, 2025;
- The Decision no. 35-2024/QĐ-HĐQT dated June 21st, 2024 of SHS Board of Directors (BOD) on implementing the plan of issuing shares for the 2023 dividends payment and increasing SHS charter capital from equity;
- The official Documents no. 1577/UBCK-QLKD and no. 1578/UBCK-QLKD dated May 09th, 2025 from the State Securities Commission on SHS report of results regarding the issuance of shares for the 2023 dividends payment and the increase of charter capital from equity;
- SHS BOD's meeting Minutes no.25-2025/BBH-HDQT dated May 12th, 2025 confirming the increase in charter capital and amendment of the Charter;
- SHS BOD's Resolution no. 02-2025/NQ-HĐQT dated May 12th, 2025 regarding the increase of SHS' charter capital;
- The License amendment no. 20/GPĐC-UBCK issued by the State Securities Commission on May 28th, 2025, adjusting the Establishment and Operation License of the securities company.

HEREBY RESOLVE:

Article 1: Approval of the amendment and supplementation to the contents of charter capital as stipulated in Article 6 and the Appendix of the Charter of Saigon – Hanoi Securities Joint Stock Company, as follows:

1st

NG T IPHA IG KH I GC À MC

1.1. Original contents in the Charter:

Article 6. The total charter capital of the Company is divided into 813,156,748 shares with a par value of VND 10,000 (*Ten thousand*) per share.

Appendix:

1) Details of the Company's Charter Capital from establishment to present:

No.	MONTH	CHARTER CAPITAL (VND)	REMARK	
1	November 2007	350,000,000,000	Company establishment	
2	May 2009	410,629,960,000	Issuance of bonus shares to increase charter capital from capital surplus	
3	April 2010	1,000,000,000,000	Issuance of shares to increase charter capital for existing shareholders, employees, and potential partners	
4	May 2018	1,053,956,740,000	Issuance of shares to swap SHBS shares for the merger with SHB Securities JSC	
5	May 2019	2,072,682,010,000	Issuance of shares to increase charter capital by paying dividends in shares and offering to existing shareholders, employees, and potential partners	
6	October 2021	3,252,650,270,000	Issuance of shares to increase charter capital from owner's equity and offering to existing shareholders and employees	
7	June 2022	6,505,300,540,000	Additional public offering to existing shareholders	
8	August 2022	8,131,567,480,000	Issuance of SHS shares to pay dividends for 2021 and increase equity capital from owner's equity	

1.2. <u>Amended and supplemented contents:</u>

Article 6. The total charter capital of the Company is divided into 894,462,220 shares with a par value of VND 10,000 (*Ten thousand*) per share.

Appendix:



1) Details of the Company's Charter Capital from establishment to present:

No.	YEAR	CHARTER CAPITAL (VND)	REMARK		
1	2007	350,000,000,000	Company establishment		
2	2009	410,629,960,000	Issuance of bonus shares to increase charter capital from capital surplus		
3	2010	1,000,000,000,000	Issuance of shares to increase charter capital for existing shareholders, employees, and potential partners		
4	2018	1,053,956,740,000	Issuance of shares to swap SHBS shares for the merger with SHB Securities JSC		
5	2019	2,072,682,010,000	Issuance of shares to increase charter capital by paying dividends in shares and offering to existing shareholders, employees, and potential partners		
6	2021	3,252,650,270,000	Issuance of shares to increase charter capital from owner's equity and offering to existing shareholders and employees		
7	2022	6,505,300,540,000	Additional public offering to existing shareholders		
8	2022	8,131,567,480,000	Issuance of SHS shares to pay dividends for 2021 and increase equity capital from owner's equity		
9	2025	8,944,622,200,000	Shares issuing to pay the dividends of the year 2023 and shares issuing to increase charter capital from equity		

Article 2: The amended and supplemented Charter of Saigon – Hanoi Securities Joint Stock Company takes effect from May 29th, 2025.

The previously issued Charter of the Company shall cease to be effective.

Article 3: This Resolution shall take effect from the date of signing and replace the previous Resolutions and Decisions of the Company related to the implementation of the amended and supplemented the Company's Charter.

Article 4: The Board of Directors' members, the Board of Management, the BOD's office and relevant Departments, Divisions and individuals of Saigon - Hanoi Securities JSC are responsible for implementing this Resolution.

Recipients:

- As Article 4 refers;
- SSC, Stock exchanges (to report),
 Publicly announced;
- Archived at SHS BOD's office, Administrative Dept.

On behalf of SHS Board of Directors

CÔNG TY
CÔ PHẨN
CHỨNG KHOÁN
SÀI GÓN
HÀ MỘI
CHẾM ĐƠ QUANG VINH





SAIGON - HANOI SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY (SHS)

Floors 1-5, Unimex Hanoi Building, 41 Ngo Quyen St., Hang Bai Ward, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

- Tel: 84,24,38181888
- Fax: 84.24,38181688
- Email: contact@shs.com.vn
- Website: www.shs.com,vn

CHARTER

(adopted and effective from May 29th, 2025

pursuant to the Resolution No. 03-2025/NQ-HĐQT dated May 29th, 2025

of the Board of Directors of Saigon – Hanoi Securities Joint Stock Company)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	DEFINITIONS OF TERMS IN THE CHARTER	4	
Article 1.	Interpretation of Terms		
II.	NAME, FORM, HEADQUARTERS, BRANCHES, REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES, BU LOCATIONS, OPERATING PERIOD, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE OF COMPANY	JSINESS OF THE	
Article 2.	Name, form, headquarters, branches, representative offices, business location operating period of the Company	ons, and	
Article 3.	Legal Representative of the Company	Ę	
III.	OBJECTIVES, SCOPE OF BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY	6	
Article 4.	Objectives and principles of Operation of the Company	e	
Article 5.	Scope of business and operations of the Company	8	
IV.	CHARTER CAPITAL, SHARES, FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS	9	
Article 6.	Charter Capital, shares, founding shareholders	9	
Article 7.	Share certificate	9	
Article 8.	Other securities certificates	10	
Article 9.	Transfer of shares	10	
V.	ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, MANAGEMENT, AND CONTROL	10	
Article 10.	Organizational structure, management, and control	10	
VI.	SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS	10	
Article 11.	Rights of Shareholders	10	
Article 12.	Obligations of Shareholders	11	
Article 13.	General Meeting of Shareholders	12	
Article 14.	Rights and Obligations of the General Meeting of Shareholders	13	
Article 15.	Right to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders	14	
Article 16.	Changes to rights	15	
Article 17.	Convening, Agenda, and notice of the General Meeting of Shareholders	15	
Article 18.	Conditions for holding the General Meeting of Shareholders	16	
Article 19.	Procedures for conducting and voting at the General Meeting of Shareholders	17	
Article 20.	Conditions for passing Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders	18	
Article 21.	Authority and procedures for collecting Shareholders' written opinions to Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders	approve 18	
Article 22.	Resolutions and Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders	20	
Article 23.	Request for annulment of a Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders	21	
/II.	BOARD OF DIRECTORS	21	
Article 24.	Candidacy and nomination of Board Members	21	
Article 25.	Composition and term of Board Members	23	
Article 26.	Powers and duties of the Board of Directors	23	
/III.	CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND OTHER EXECUTIVES	30	
Article 36.	Internal Control Unit under the CEO	32	
X.	AUDIT COMMITTEE UNDER THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS	32	
Article 37.	Candidacy and nomination of Audit Committee Members	32	

Article 38.	Composition of the Audit Committee	32		
Article 39.	Rights and duties of the Audit Committee			
Article 40.	Meetings of the Audit Committee			
Article 41.	Reporting by Independent Board Members in the Audit Committee at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 34			
X.	RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOD MEMBERS, CEO, AND OTHER EXECUTIVES			
Article 42.	Honesty and avoidance of Conflicts of Interest			
Article 43.	Approval of contracts and transactions between the Company and related Persons 3			
Article 44.	Liability for damages and compensation			
XI.	RIGHT TO INSPECT THE COMPANY'S RECORDS AND DOCUMENTS	36		
Article 45.	Right to inspect records and documents			
XII.	EMPLOYEES AND TRADE UNIONS	36		
Article 46.	Employees and Trade Unions	36		
XIII.	FUNDS ALLOCATION AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTION	37		
Article 47.	Funds allocation	37		
Article 48.	Profit distribution	37		
XIV.	BANK ACCOUNTS, FISCAL YEAR, AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEM	37		
Article 49.	Bank accounts	37		
Article 50.	Fiscal year	37		
Article 51.	Accounting system	37		
XV.	FINANCIAL REPORTS, ANNUAL REPORTS, AND INFORMATION RESPONSIBILITIES	DISCLOSURE 38		
Article 52.	Annual, semi-annual, and quarterly financial reports	38		
Article 53.	Annual reports	38		
Article 54.	Information disclosure responsibilities	38		
XVI.	COMPANY AUDIT	38		
Article 55.	Audit	38		
XVII.	COMPANY SEAL	38		
Article 56.	Company seal	38		
XVIII.	REORGANIZATION AND DISSOLUTION OF THE COMPANY	39		
Article 57.	Reorganization of the Company	39		
Article 58.	Dissolution of the Company	39		
Article 59.	Extension of operations	39		
Article 60.	Liquidation	39		
XIX.	INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION	40		
Article 61.	Internal dispute resolution	40		
XX.	AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE CHARTER	40		
Article 62.	Company Charter	40		
XXI.	EFFECTIVE DATE	40		
Article 63.	Effective Date	40		
APPENDIX		42		

SAIGON – HANOI SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM Independence - Freedom - Happiness

CHARTER SAIGON – HANOI SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

(Issued pursuantly to the Resolution No. 03-2025/NQ-HDQT dated May 29th, 2025 of the Board of Directors of Saigon – Hanoi Securities Joint Stock Company)

INTRODUCTION

This Charter was adopted pursuant to the Resolution no. 01-2025/NQ-ĐHĐCĐ dated April 10th, 2025 of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and the Resolution no. 03-2025/NQ-HĐQT dated May 29th, 2025 of the Board of Directors of Sai Gon – Ha Noi Securities Joint Stock Company.

DEFINITIONS OF TERMS IN THE CHARTER

Article 1. Interpretation of Terms

- 1. In this Charter, the following terms shall be understood as follows:
- a) "Company" or "SHS" refers to Sai Gon Ha Noi Securities Joint Stock Company;
- b) "Charter Capital" means the total par value of shares that have been sold or registered for purchase at the time of the Company's establishment and as specified in Article 6 of this Charter;
- c) "Enterprise Law" refers to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;
- d) "Securities Law" refers to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019;
- e) "Vietnam" means the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;
- f) "Date of Establishment" refers to the date the Company was first issued its Enterprise Registration Certificate (Business Registration Certificate or equivalent documents);
- g) "Company Management" includes the Chairperson of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and other individuals appointed by the Board of Directors as Executive Officers (explicitly stated as "Executive Officer" in the appointment decision) and in accordance with relevant laws;
- "Related Person" refers to individuals and organizations as defined in Clause 46, Article 4 of the Securities Law;
- "Shareholder" refers to individuals and organizations holding at least one share of the Company;
- "Founding Shareholder" refers to shareholders owning at least one common share and listed in the list of founding shareholders of the Company;
- "Major Shareholder" refers to shareholders as defined in Clause 18, Article 4 of the Securities Law;
- "Operating Period" refers to the duration of the Company's operation as specified in Article 2
 of this Charter and any extensions approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders;



10/0

- m) "Stock Exchange" refers to the Vietnam Stock Exchange and its subsidiaries;
- "Securities Business License" refers to License No. 66/GP-UBCK issued by the State Securities Commission and amendments or adjustments to this license over time;
- "Non-executive Board Member" refers to a member who does not hold an executive position in the Company.
- References to any provision or document in this Charter shall include any amendments, supplements, or replacements thereof.
- Titles (Sections, Articles in this Charter) are for convenience only and do not affect the contents of this Charter.
- II. NAME, FORM, HEADQUARTERS, BRANCHES, REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES, BUSINESS LOCATIONS, OPERATING PERIOD, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COMPANY

Article 2. Name, Form, Headquarters, Branches, Representative Offices, Business Locations, and Operating Period of the Company

- Company Name:
- a) Name in Vietnamese: Công ty Cổ phần Chứng khoán Sài Gòn Hà Nội.
- Name in English: Sai Gon Ha Noi Securities Joint Stock Company.
- c) Abbreviated name: SHS
- The Company is a joint-stock company with legal status in accordance with the current laws of Vietnam.
- Registered headquarters:
- Address: Floors 1 5, Unimex Hanoi Building, No. 41, Ngo Quyen Street, Hang Bai Ward, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.
- b) Telephone: (84.24) 38 181 888
- c) Fax: (84.24) 38 181 688
- d) E-mail: contact@shs.com.vn
- e) Website: www.shs.com.vn
- Operational network:
- a) The Company may establish branches, transaction offices, and representative offices to achieve its operational objectives, in accordance with decisions of the Board of Directors and within the scope permitted by law.
- b) Branches, transaction offices, and representative offices (if any) are dependent units of the Company, and the Company shall be fully responsible for their operations.
- Unless terminated earlier as provided in Clause 2, Article 58 or extended in accordance with Article 59 of this Charter, the Company's operational term is indefinite from the date of establishment.

Article 3. Legal Representative of the Company

- The Chief Executive Officer is the Legal Representative of the Company.
- The Legal Representative of the Company is an individual who represents the Company in exercising rights and fulfilling obligations arising from the Company's transactions,

EV EN TIME

- representing the Company as a petitioner, plaintiff, defendant, or relevant party before arbitration, courts, and other legal obligations in accordance with the law.
- Responsibilities of the Legal Representative of the Company:
- Perform assigned rights and obligations honestly, prudently, and in the best manner to ensure the legitimate interests of the Company;
- Remain loyal to the interests of the Company, refrain from abusing position and power, and avoid using information, business opportunities, and other assets of the Company for personal gain or to benefit another individual or organization;
- c) Promptly, fully, and accurately notify the Company about any business entity where they or their related persons hold ownership, shares, or capital contribution as required by the Enterprise Law, Securities Law, the Company's Charter, and relevant regulations.
- The Legal Representative of the Company shall be personally liable for damages caused to the Company due to violations of responsibilities stipulated in Clause 3 of this Article.
- The Legal Representative of the Company must reside in Vietnam.
- If the Legal Representative exits Vietnam, they must authorize another individual residing in Vietnam with full legal capacity to exercise the rights and obligations of the Legal Representative.
 - In this case, the Legal Representative remains responsible for the rights and obligations delegated.
- 7. If the authorization period in Clause 6 expires and the Legal Representative has not returned to Vietnam or has not appointed another representative, the authorized individual continues to exercise the Legal Representative's rights and obligations until the Legal Representative returns or until the Board of Directors appoints another individual as the Legal Representative.
- 8. If the Legal Representative of the Company is absent from Vietnam for more than 30 days without appointing another representative; or in cases of death, disappearance, criminal prosecution, detention, imprisonment, or incapacitation as determined by law, the Board of Directors shall appoint another person as the Company's Legal Representative.
- 9. If the Chief Executive Officer who is also the Legal Representative, dies, disappears, is prosecuted, detained, imprisoned, restricted in legal capacity, or removed from office before a replacement is appointed, the Chairperson shall automatically assume the role of Legal Representative until a new appointment is made by the Board of Directors.
- Courts or other competent legal authorities have the right to appoint the Legal Representative
 of the Company during legal proceedings as required by law.

III. OBJECTIVES, SCOPE OF BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

Article 4. Objectives and Principles of Operation of the Company

- Objectives of the Company:
- Conduct business to maximize profits for shareholders while complying with legal regulations;
- Achieve long-term sustainable development, integrate into the regional and global economy to become one of the leading securities companies in Vietnam;
- Provide benefits to shareholders, employees, and deliver high-quality products and services to customers.

15

- Principles of governance and management of the Company¹:
- a) Comply with legal regulations of the Securities Law, Enterprise Law, the Company's Charter, and other relevant legal provisions;
- Clearly define the responsibilities among the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, and the Board of Management in accordance with the Securities Law, Enterprise Law, the Company's Charter, and other relevant legal provisions;
- Establish a communication system with shareholders to ensure full disclosure of information and fair treatment among shareholders, ensuring shareholders' legal rights and benefits;
- Establish an internal control system, risk management, and supervision to prevent conflicts of interest within the Company and transactions with related parties;
- Ensure employees working in professional departments hold appropriate securities practice certificates in accordance with securities and stock market regulations.
- Principles of business operations of the Company²:
- a) Fully establish operational procedures for business activities and ethical professional codes;
- The Company and its employees must not make investments on behalf of customers, except in cases of entrusted management of securities trading accounts of individual investors;
- Maintain honesty with customers, refrain from infringing on assets, rights, and other legal benefits of customers. Ensure the segregation of each customer's assets and separate customer assets from the Company's assets;
- Sign contracts with customers when providing services; fully and truthfully disclose information to customers;
- e) Unless otherwise prescribed by law, the Company must not directly or indirectly engage in the following activities when providing services to customers:
- Making investment decisions on behalf of customers;
- Agreeing with customers to share profits or losses;
- Advertising or claiming that its content, effectiveness, or securities analysis methods are superior to those of other securities companies;
- Providing false information to entice or persuade customers to buy or sell a specific security;
- Providing false, fraudulent, or misleading information to customers;
- Other activities prohibited by law.
- f) Implement accounting, auditing, statistical, and financial obligations as prescribed by law;
- g) Timely, fully, and accurately disclose and report information in accordance with legal regulations;
- Develop an information technology system and backup database to ensure safe and continuous operations;
- Conduct securities transaction supervision as per the Minister of Finance's regulations;
- Establish a specialized department responsible for communicating with customers and resolving customer inquiries and complaints;

¹ Article 3 of Circular 121/2020/TT-BTC

² Article 4 of Circular 121/2020/TT-BTC

k) Fulfill other obligations as prescribed by securities laws and other related legal provisions.

Article 5. Scope of Business and Operations of the Company

- The Company is permitted to conduct investment and business activities in industries, products, and services as specified in the Company's Charter, licenses, legal regulations, registered business activities, and changes notified to regulatory authorities and published on the National Business Registration Portal if required by law. If the Company operates in a conditional business sector, it must meet the business conditions specified in the Investment Law and other relevant legal provisions.
- The Company's business sectors:
- Securities business activities:
- Securities brokerage;
- Proprietary trading: trading securities in proprietary accounts, investing, contributing capital, issuing, and offering financial products as per applicable regulations;
- iii. Underwriting securities issuance;
- iv. Securities investment consulting.
- b) Securities business services:
- Managing securities trading accounts on behalf of individual clients; distributing or acting as an agent to distribute securities; managing securities trading accounts; providing services for maintaining the list of securities owners for other enterprises;
- Providing online securities trading services; offering or collaborating with credit institutions to provide margin lending for securities purchases or securities lending services; providing or collaborating with credit institutions to offer advance payment for securities sales; securities depository; securities clearing and settlement;
- iii. Consulting on securities offering dossiers, assisting with pre-offering procedures; acting as a custody, payment, and securities transfer agent; advising on restructuring, mergers, acquisitions, reorganization, and corporate transactions; corporate governance consulting, business strategy consulting; advising on securities issuance, listing, and trading registration; advising on enterprise equitization;
- Derivatives trading, including brokerage, proprietary trading, investment consulting, clearing, settlement, and related services;
- Providing intraday securities trading services;
- vi. Market-making activities;
- vii. Issuing covered warrants and performing related activities (offering, listing, market-making, hedging transactions for covered warrants, brokerage, and investment consulting for covered warrants, etc.). Covered warrant holders have rights and obligations as specified by law, including:
 - Right to receive cash payment or transfer of underlying securities under specified conditions and payment methods; other rights and obligations defined by the Company in the prospectus for each issuance and related legal provisions;
 - Right to purchase (call warrants) or sell (put warrants) underlying securities to the Company at a pre-determined price at a specified time or before a specified date, or receive the price difference between the execution price and the underlying security price at the time of execution as per warrant terms;

- Right to cash payment when covered warrants are delisted as per regulations;
- Right to transfer, gift, inherit, pledge as collateral for loans in civil transactions under legal provisions;
- Right to priority payment in case of Company dissolution or bankruptcy as per legal regulations;
- And other rights as stipulated by law.
- viii. Other services in compliance with legal provisions applicable from time to time.

IV. CHARTER CAPITAL, SHARES, FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS

Article 6. Charter Capital, Shares, Founding Shareholders

- The Company's charter capital is stated in the Appendix attached to this Charter.
 The total charter capital of the Company is divided into 894,462,220 shares with a par value of VND 10,000 (*Ten thousand*) per share.
- The Company may change its charter capital upon approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders and in accordance with legal regulations.
- As of the date of adoption of this Charter, all shares of the Company are common shares.
 The rights and obligations of shareholders holding each type of share are specified in Articles
 and 12 of this Charter.
- The Company may issue other types of preferred shares upon approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders and in compliance with legal regulations.
- The names, addresses, number of shares, and other details of the founding shareholders as required by the Enterprise Law are listed in the Appendix attached to this Charter.
- 6. Common shares must be offered for sale to existing shareholders in proportion to their ownership percentage unless the General Meeting of Shareholders decides otherwise. Any unsold shares shall be handled by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may allocate such shares to other shareholders and persons under terms not less favorable than those offered to existing shareholders unless otherwise approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
- The Company may repurchase shares issued by the Company in accordance with the provisions of this Charter and applicable laws.
- 8. The Company may issue other types of securities as permitted by law.
- Foreign ownership ratio in the Company:
- The maximum foreign ownership ratio in the Company is 49% (forty-nine percent) of the Company's Charter Capital;
- b) The Company shall report to the State Securities Commission and disclose the foreign ownership ratio on its website and through other methods as required by law.

Article 7. Share Certificate

- Shareholders of the Company shall be issued share certificates corresponding to the number and type of shares they own. The share certificate must contain the full details as prescribed in Clause 1, Article 121 of the Law on Enterprises.
- In the event that a share certificate is lost, damaged, or otherwise destroyed, the shareholder shall be reissued a new share certificate by the Company upon request. The shareholder's

request must include:

- a) Information regarding the lost, damaged, or destroyed share certificate;
- A commitment to bear responsibility for any disputes arising from the issuance of the new share certificate.

Article 8. Other Securities Certificates

Bonds or other securities certificates of the Company shall be issued in accordance with operational requirements and in compliance with applicable laws.

Article 9. Transfer of Shares

- All shares shall be freely transferable except where otherwise provided in this Charter, issuance terms, or applicable laws. Listed shares and shares registered for trading on the Stock Exchange shall be transferred in accordance with securities laws and market regulations.
- Shares that have not been fully paid for shall not be transferred and shall not entitle the shareholder to benefits such as receiving dividends, bonus shares from equity, pre-emptive rights to purchase newly issued shares, and other rights under the law.

V. ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, MANAGEMENT, AND CONTROL

Article 10. Organizational Structure, Management, and Control

The Company's management, governance, and control structure includes:

- The General Meeting of Shareholders;
- 2. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee under the Board of Directors;
- The Chief Executive Officer (Internal Control Division under the Chief Executive Officer).

VI. SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Article 11. Rights of Shareholders

- Common shareholders shall have the following rights³:
- To attend, express opinions, and exercise voting rights at the General Meeting of Shareholders through the methods stipulated in this Charter and applicable laws. Each common share shall carry one voting right;
- To receive dividends as determined by the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- To have pre-emptive rights to purchase new shares in proportion to their ownership percentage of common shares in the Company;
- To freely transfer their shares to others, except where otherwise stipulated in this Charter, issuance terms, and applicable laws;
- To inspect, review, and extract information regarding names and contact addresses in the list of shareholders entitled to vote and to request corrections of incorrect information;
- To inspect, review, extract, or copy the Company's Charter, minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders, and resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- In the event of the Company's dissolution or bankruptcy, to receive a portion of the remaining assets in proportion to their shareholding in the Company;

10

³ Clause 1, Article 115 of the Enterprise Law Clause 1, Article 41 of the Securities Law

- To request the Company to repurchase their shares in cases specified in Article 132 of the Law on Enterprises;
- i) To be treated equally. Each share of the same class shall entitle the shareholder to the same rights, obligations, and benefits. If the Company has preferred shares, the rights and obligations associated with each type of preferred share must be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders and fully disclosed to shareholders;
- To access full periodic and extraordinary information disclosed by the Company in accordance with legal regulations;
- k) To have their legitimate rights and interests protected and to request suspension or annulment of resolutions and decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders or the Board of Directors in accordance with the Law on Enterprises;
- Other rights as prescribed by law and this Charter.
- A shareholder or a group of shareholders holding at least 5% (five percent) of the total common shares shall have the following rights⁴:
- To request the Board of Directors to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders in case the Board of Directors seriously violates shareholders' rights, managerial obligations, or makes decisions beyond its authority;
- To inspect, review, and extract minutes and resolutions/decisions of the Board of Directors, semi-annual and annual financial statements, contracts, transactions requiring Board of Directors approval, and other documents, except for trade secrets and business secrets of the Company;
- c) To propose issues to be included in the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- d) Other rights as prescribed by law and this Charter.
- A shareholder or a group of shareholders holding at least 10% of the total common shares shall have the right to nominate members to the Board of Directors⁵.

Article 12. Obligations of Shareholders⁶

Common shareholders shall have the following obligations:

- To fully and timely pay for subscribed shares.
- 2. Not to withdraw contributed capital in the form of common shares from the Company in any manner, except where the Company or another party repurchases their shares. If a shareholder illegally withdraws part or all of their contributed capital, such shareholder and any related beneficiary must jointly bear liability for the Company's debts and other obligations up to the value of the withdrawn shares and any resulting damages.
- To comply with the Charter and internal management regulations of the Company.
- To abide by the resolutions and decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors.
- To maintain the confidentiality of information provided by the Company as stipulated in this Charter and the law; to use such information only to exercise and protect their legitimate rights and interests; and not to distribute, duplicate, or send the information to other organizations or individuals.

⁴ Clause 2, 3, Article 115; Clause 2, Article 142 of the Enterprise Law

⁵ Clause 5, Article 115 of the Enterprise Law

⁶ Article 119 of the Enterprise Law

- To bear personal liability when acting on behalf of the Company in any form to⁷:
- a) Violate the law:
- Conduct business or transactions for personal gain or for the benefit of other organizations or individuals;
- Pay undue debts in anticipation of financial risks to the Company.
- 7. To comply with the provisions of Points c and d, Clause 2, Article 74 of the Securities Law.
- 8. To fulfill other obligations as required by current laws.

Article 13. General Meeting of Shareholders

- 1. The General Meeting of Shareholders consists of all shareholders with voting rights and is the highest decision-making body of the Company. The General Meeting of Shareholders is held annually once a year within four (04) months from the end of the fiscal year. The Board of Directors may decide to extend the annual General Meeting of Shareholders if necessary, but not exceeding six (06) months from the end of the fiscal year and must report the extension to the State Securities Commission. In addition to the annual meeting, the General Meeting of Shareholders may hold extraordinary meetings. The location of the General Meeting of Shareholders is determined as the place where Meeting's Chairperson attends the meeting and must be within the territory of Vietnam⁸.
- 2. The Board of Directors convenes the annual General Meeting of Shareholders and selects an appropriate location. The annual General Meeting of Shareholders decides on matters in accordance with the law and the Company's Charter, particularly the approval of the audited annual financial statements. In case the Company's annual financial statements contain material exceptions, adverse opinions, or disclaimers in the audit report, the Company must invite a representative of the approved audit firm that audited the financial statements to attend the annual General Meeting of Shareholders, and the representative of the approved audit firm is responsible for attending the annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company⁹.
- The Board of Directors must convene an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders in the following cases¹⁰:
- The Board of Directors deems it necessary for the benefit of the Company;
- b) The number of remaining Board members is less than the minimum number required by law;
- c) Upon the request of shareholders or groups of shareholders as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 11 of this Charter; The request to convene an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders must comply with the format and content specified in Clause 4, Article 115 of the Law on Enterprises, and the written request must be signed by the relevant shareholders or compiled into multiple documents with all relevant shareholders' signatures;
- d) Other cases as prescribed by law and this Charter.
- Time limit for convening an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders¹¹:
- a) The Board of Directors must convene the General Meeting of Shareholders within 30 days from the date the number of remaining Board members, independent Board members is as prescribed in Point b, Clause 3 of this Article (except for the case specified in Point a, Clause

13

⁷ Sample Charter

⁸ Clause 1, 2, Article 139 of the Enterprise Law; Clause 2, Article 7 of Circular 121/2020/TT-BTC

Point c, Clause 2, Article 41 of the Securities Law; Clause 4, Article 273 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP

¹⁰ Clause 1, Article 140 of the Enterprise Law

¹¹ Clause 2, 3, 4, Article 140 of the Enterprise Law

- 3, Article 30 of this Charter) or from the date of receipt of the request specified in Point c, Clause 3 of this Article:
- b) If the Board of Directors does not convene the General Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated in Point a of this Clause, within the next 30 days, the shareholders or group of shareholders as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 11 of this Charter have the right to request the Company's representative to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders under the Law on Enterprises;

In this case, the shareholders or group of shareholders convening the General Meeting of Shareholders may request the Business Registration Authority to supervise the order, procedures for convening, conducting meetings, and making decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. All costs for convening and holding the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be reimbursed by the Company. These costs do not include the expenses incurred by shareholders for attending the General Meeting of Shareholders, including accommodation and travel costs.

Article 14. Rights and Obligations of the General Meeting of Shareholders

- The General Meeting of Shareholders has the following rights and obligations¹²:
- a) Approving the development orientation of the Company;
- Deciding on the type and total number of shares of each type that may be offered for sale; deciding the annual dividend rate for each type of share;
- Electing, dismissing, and removing members of the Board of Directors;
- Deciding on investments or selling assets with a value of 35% or more of the total asset value recorded in the most recent financial statement of the Company;
- e) Amending and supplementing the Company's Charter;
- f) Approving annual financial statements;
- Deciding to repurchase issued shares of each type in accordance with Article 133 of the Law on Enterprises and Article 36 of the Law on Securities;
- Reviewing and handling violations of members of the Board of Directors that cause damage to the Company and its shareholders;
- i) Deciding on the reorganization, dissolution of the Company, and appointing liquidators;
- Deciding on the budget or total remuneration, bonuses, and other benefits for the Board of Directors;
- Approving the Internal Governance Regulations, Organization and Operation Regulations of the Board of Directors;
- Approving the list of approved audit firms; deciding on an approved audit firm to audit the Company's activities, dismissing approved auditors when deemed necessary;
- m) Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law.
- The annual General Meeting of Shareholders discusses and approves the following matters:¹³
- a) The Company's annual business plan;

¹² Article 138 of the Enterprise Law

¹³ Clause 3, Article 139 of the Enterprise Law

- The audited annual financial statements;
- c) The report of the Board of Directors on governance and operational results of the Board of Directors and each Board member;
- The report of the independent Board member in the Audit Committee;
- e) The dividend rate for each type of share;
- Other matters within its authority as prescribed by law and this Charter.
- All resolutions and issues included in the meeting agenda must be discussed and voted on at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Article 15. Right to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders14

- Shareholders, authorized representatives of institutional shareholders may directly attend meetings or authorize one or more individuals or organizations to attend the meeting or participate through one of the forms specified in Clause 2 of this Article.
- Shareholders are considered to be present and vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders in the following cases:
- a) Attending and voting directly at the meeting;
- b) Authorizing an individual or organization to attend and vote at the meeting;
- c) Attending and voting via online conferences, electronic voting, or other electronic means;
- d) Sending voting ballots to the meeting via mail, fax, email, or other means as prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.
- 3. The authorization for an individual or organization to represent a shareholder at the General Meeting of Shareholders under Clause 1 of this Article must be in writing. The authorization document must be made in accordance with civil law and must clearly state the name of the authorizing shareholder, the name of the authorized individual or organization, the number of shares authorized, the scope and content of the authorization, the duration of the authorization, and the signatures of both the authorizing and authorized parties.
- 4. The authorized representative attending the General Meeting of Shareholders must submit the authorization document when registering for the meeting. In case of further delegation, the attendee must present the initial authorization document from the shareholder or the authorized representative of the institutional shareholder (if not previously registered with the Company).
- 5. The voting ballot of the authorized representative attending the meeting remains valid in the following cases, except when the Company receives notice of one of these events before the opening of the General Meeting of Shareholders or before the meeting is reconvened:
- a) The authorizing shareholder has died, been restricted in civil capacity, or lost civil capacity;
- The authorizing shareholder has revoked the authorization;
- c) The authorizing shareholder has revoked the authority of the person executing the authorization.



¹⁴ Article 144 of the Enterprise Law (Clauses 4 and 5 according to the Sample Charter)

Article 16. Changes to rights15

- 1. Changes or revocation of special rights attached to a type of preferred shares shall be effective when approved by at least 65% of the total voting shares of all attending shareholders. The resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders concerning matters that adversely change the rights and obligations of preferred shareholders shall only be approved if at least 75% of the total shares of the same preferred share type present at the meeting vote in favor or if at least 75% of the total shares of the same preferred share type approve in case of a written opinion poll.
- 2. The meeting of shareholders holding a specific type of preferred shares to approve changes in rights as mentioned above is only valid when at least two shareholders (or their authorized representatives) holding at least one-third (1/3) of the nominal value of that type of issued shares are present. If the required number of delegates is not met, the meeting shall be reconvened within 30 days, and all shareholders of that share type (regardless of number or shareholding) present in person or through authorized representatives shall be deemed sufficient for the meeting. At these meetings, shareholders of that share type present directly or via representatives may request secret ballots. Each share of the same type has equal voting rights at these meetings.
- The procedures for conducting separate meetings shall be implemented similarly to the provisions of Articles 17 and 19 of this Charter.
- 4. Unless otherwise specified in the share issuance terms, special rights associated with preferred shares concerning the distribution of profits or assets of the Company shall not change when the Company issues additional shares of the same type.

Article 17. Convening, Agenda, and Notice of the General Meeting of Shareholders¹⁶

- The Board of Directors convenes the annual and extraordinary General Meetings of Shareholders. The Board of Directors convenes extraordinary General Meetings of Shareholders in the cases stipulated in Clause 3, Article 13 of this Charter.
- The convener of the General Meeting of Shareholders must perform the following tasks:
- a) Prepare the list of shareholders eligible to participate and vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders. The list of shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be prepared no later than 10 days before the notice of the meeting is sent. The Company must disclose information about the preparation of the list of shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders at least 20 days before the final registration date;
- Prepare the Agenda and contents of the meeting;
- Prepare documents for the meeting;
- Draft resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders based on the proposed meeting contents;
- e) Determine the time and place for the meeting;
- Notify and send the meeting notice to all shareholders entitled to attend;
- g) Other tasks to serve the meeting.
- The notice of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be sent to all shareholders through means ensuring delivery to the shareholder's registered contact address (including via postal

¹⁵ Clause 6, Article 148 of the Enterprise Law

¹⁶ Clause 5, Article 140, Article 141, 142, 143 of the Enterprise Law; Article 273 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP; Clause 3, Article 12 of Circular 96/2020/TT-BTC

mail, email, phone number, or other methods as decided by the Board of Directors from time to time) and shall also be publicly disclosed on the Company's website, the State Securities Commission, and the Stock Exchange where the Company's shares are listed or registered for trading. The convener of the General Meeting of Shareholders must send the notice of the meeting to all shareholders in the list of shareholders entitled to attend at least 21 days before the opening date of the meeting (counting from the date the notice is sent or transferred validly). The meeting agenda and related documents for voting at the meeting must be sent to shareholders or published on the Company's website. If the documents are not included in the notice, the notice must specify a link to access all meeting materials, including:

- a) The agenda and documents used at the meeting;
- The list and detailed information of candidates in case of electing members of the Board of Directors;
- c) Voting ballots;
- d) Draft resolutions for each issue on the meeting agenda.
- 4. Shareholders or groups of shareholders as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 11 of this Charter have the right to propose issues to be included in the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The proposal must be in writing and sent to the Company at least 03 working days before the opening date of the meeting. The proposal must clearly state the shareholder's name, the number of each type of shares held, and the proposed issue for inclusion in the agenda.
- The convener of the General Meeting of Shareholders has the right to refuse proposals under Clause 4 of this Article in the following cases:
- a) The proposal was not submitted in accordance with Clause 4 of this Article;
- b) At the time of the proposal, the shareholder or group of shareholders does not hold at least 05% of common shares as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 11 of this Charter;
- The proposed issue is not within the decision-making authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- Other cases as stipulated by law and this Charter.
- 6. The convener of the General Meeting of Shareholders must accept and include proposals under Clause 4 of this Article in the proposed agenda and meeting contents, except as provided in Clause 5 of this Article. The proposal is officially added to the agenda and meeting contents if approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Article 18. Conditions for holding the General Meeting of Shareholders 17

- The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted when attending shareholders represent more than 50% (fifty percent) of the total voting shares.
- In case the first meeting does not meet the quorum as stipulated in Clause 1 of this Article, the second meeting notice shall be sent within 30 days from the scheduled date of the first meeting. The second General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted when attending shareholders represent at least 33% (thirty-three percent) of the total voting shares.
- In case the second meeting does not meet the quorum as stipulated in Clause 2 of this Article, the third meeting notice shall be sent within 20 days from the scheduled date of the second meeting. The third General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted regardless of the

¹⁷ Article 145 of the Enterprise Law

- total voting shares of the attending shareholders.
- Only the General Meeting of Shareholders has the authority to decide on changes to the meeting agenda that was sent along with the meeting notice.

Article 19. Procedures for conducting and voting at the General Meeting of Shareholders 18

- Before the meeting commences, the Company shall conduct shareholder registration and continue registering until all eligible shareholders have signed in, following the procedures below:
- a) When registering, the Company shall issue each shareholder or authorized representative a voting card, specifying the registration number, shareholder's name, authorized representative's name, and the number of voting rights.
- b) Shareholders, representatives of institutional shareholders, or proxies arriving after the meeting has started shall register immediately and have the right to participate and vote after registration. The Chairperson is not obliged to pause the meeting for late registrants, and the validity of previously voted resolutions remains unchanged.
- 2. Election of the Chairperson, Secretary, and Voting Committee shall be conducted as follows:
- a) The Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall be the meeting's Chairperson or may authorize another Board member to chair the General Meeting of Shareholders convened by the Board. If the Chairperson is absent or temporarily incapacitated, the remaining Board members shall elect one among them to chair the meeting by majority vote.
- b) Except as stipulated in point a of this Clause, the person signing the meeting notice shall preside over the meeting for shareholders to elect a meeting's Chairperson, and the nominee with the highest votes shall chair the meeting.
- c) The meeting's Chairperson shall appoint one or more individuals as the meeting secretary/secretaries.
- d) The General Meeting of Shareholders shall elect one or more individuals to the Voting Committee based on the proposal of the meeting's Chairperson. The number of members in the Voting Committee shall be decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders upon the recommendation of the meeting's Chairperson.
- The agenda and meeting content must be approved at the opening session of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The agenda must specify and detail the time allocated for each issue in the meeting agenda.
- 4. The meeting's Chairperson has the right to take necessary and reasonable measures to conduct the General Meeting of Shareholders in an orderly manner, in accordance with the approved agenda, and to reflect the opinions of the majority of attendees:
- a) Arrange seating at the meeting venue;
- b) Ensure the safety of all attendees at the venue;
- c) Facilitate shareholder participation (or continued participation) in the meeting. The meeting convener has full authority to modify the aforementioned measures and implement all necessary actions. These measures may include issuing entrance passes or adopting other selection methods.
- The General Meeting of Shareholders shall discuss and vote on each issue in the agenda.
 Voting shall be conducted as "approve," "disapprove," and " no opinion." The voting results

17

¹⁸ Article 146 of the Enterprise Law

- shall be announced by the meeting's Chairperson before the meeting concludes.
- The meeting convener or Chairperson of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall have the following rights:
- Require all attendees to undergo legal and reasonable security checks;
- b) Request competent authorities to maintain order during the meeting and expel individuals who fail to comply with the Chairperson's authority, intentionally disrupt order, obstruct the meeting's progress, or refuse security checks from the General Meeting of Shareholders.
- 7. The Chairperson has the right to postpone the General Meeting of Shareholders for a maximum of 03 (three) working days from the originally scheduled date and may only postpone or change the venue under the following circumstances:
- The venue lacks adequate seating for all attendees;
- The communication facilities at the venue do not allow shareholders to participate, discuss, and vote;
- c) Disruptive attendees pose a risk to the fairness and legality of the meeting.
- 8. If the meeting's Chairperson postpones or suspends the General Meeting of Shareholders contrary to Clause 7 of this Article, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall elect another attendee to replace the Chairperson and preside over the meeting until its conclusion. All resolutions passed at the meeting remain valid.
- If the Company applies modern technology for online shareholder meetings, it shall ensure shareholders can participate and vote through electronic voting or other digital methods as stipulated in Article 144 of the Enterprise Law and Clause 3, Article 273 of Decree No. 155/NĐ-CP dated December 31, 2020, of the Government.

Article 20. Conditions for passing Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders¹⁹

- A Resolution on the following matters shall be passed if it is approved by shareholders representing at least 65% (sixty-five percent) of the total voting shares of all shareholders attending and voting at the meeting, except as stipulated in Clause 1, Article 16, and Clause 8, Article 21 of this Charter:
- Types of shares and the total number of shares of each type;
- b) Changes in the Company's business lines and sectors;
- c) Changes in the Company's organizational structure;
- d) Investment projects or asset sales valued at 35% (thirty-five percent) or more of the Company's total assets recorded in the latest financial statement;
- e) Company reorganization or dissolution.
- Resolutions shall be passed if approved by shareholders holding over 50% (fifty percent) of the total voting shares of all attending and voting shareholders, except for cases specified in Clause 1 of this Article, Clause 8, Article 21, and Clause 1, Article 16 of this Charter.

Article 21. Authority and procedures for collecting Shareholders' written opinions to approve Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders²⁰

The authority and procedures for collecting shareholders' written opinions to approve resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be carried out as follows:

¹⁹ Article 148 of the Enterprise Law

²⁰ Article 149 of the Enterprise Law

- The Board of Directors has the right to collect shareholders' written opinions to approve resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders when deemed necessary for the benefit of the Company.
- 2. The preparation of the list of shareholders to receive opinion forms shall be conducted in accordance with Point a, Clause 2, Article 17 of this Charter. The Board of Directors must prepare the opinion forms, the draft resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders, explanatory documents regarding the draft resolution, and send them to all shareholders with voting rights in the same manner as stipulated in Clause 3, Article 17 of this Charter, at least 10 (ten) days before the deadline for returning the opinion forms.
- 3. Ballot for collecting opinions must contain the following main contents:
- a) Name, registered address, enterprise code;
- b) Purpose of collecting opinions;
- c) Full name, contact address, nationality, legal document number for individual shareholders; name, enterprise code or legal document number of organizations, registered address for organizational shareholders or full name, contact address, nationality, and legal document number for the representative of an organizational shareholder; number of shares of each type and voting rights of the shareholder;
- d) Issues to be voted on for decision-making;
- Voting options including approval, disapproval, and no opinion for each issue collected for voting;
- f) Deadline for returning the completed ballot to the Company;
- g) Full name, signature of the Board of Directors' Chairperson.
- 4. Shareholders may send the completed ballot to the Company by mail, fax, or email according to the following provisions:
- a) If sent by mail, the completed ballot must bear the signature of the individual shareholder, the authorized representative, or the legal representative of the organizational shareholder. The ballot sent to the Company must be sealed, and no one has the right to open it before vote counting;
- If sent by fax or email, the ballot sent to the Company must be kept confidential until the vote counting time;
- c) Ballots sent to the Company after the specified deadline in the ballot content or those that have been opened in the case of mail or disclosed in the case of fax or email are considered invalid. Ballots that are not returned are considered as non-participation in voting.
- 5. The Board of Directors shall conduct the vote counting and prepare the vote counting minutes in the presence of shareholders who do not hold management positions in the Company. The vote counting minutes must contain the following main contents:
- a) Name, registered address, enterprise code;
- Purpose and issues collected for voting to approve resolutions;
- Number of shareholders and total voting shares participating in the voting, distinguishing between valid and invalid votes, and the voting method, with an annex listing shareholders who participated in the voting;
- Total votes of approval, disapproval, and no opinion on each issue;
- Issues approved and the corresponding approval voting percentage;

- Full name, signature of the Board of Directors' Chairperson, vote counter, and vote counting supervisor;
- f) Members of the Board of Directors, the vote counter, and the vote counting supervisor shall be jointly liable for the accuracy and honesty of the vote counting minutes; they shall be jointly liable for any damages arising from decisions approved due to dishonest or inaccurate vote counting.
- 6. The vote counting minutes and resolutions must be sent to shareholders within 15 (fifteen) days from the date of vote counting completion. The sending of vote counting minutes and resolutions may be replaced by posting them on the Company's website within 24 hours from the vote counting completion time.
- The completed ballots, vote counting minutes, approved resolutions, and related documents attached to the ballot must be kept at the Company's registered office.
- 8. A resolution passed by collecting written opinions from shareholders is valid if approved by shareholders holding more than 50% (fifty percent) of the total voting shares of all shareholders eligible to vote and has the same validity as a resolution passed at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Article 22. Resolutions and Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders²¹

- The General Meeting of Shareholders must be recorded in minutes and may be recorded or stored electronically in other formats. The minutes must be made in Vietnamese and may also be prepared in a foreign language with the following main contents:
- Name, registered address, enterprise code;
- b) Time and venue of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- Agenda and contents of the meeting;
- full name of the chairperson and secretary;
- Summary of the meeting proceedings and opinions expressed during the General Meeting of Shareholders on each issue in the agenda;
- Number of shareholders and total voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting, with an annex listing registered shareholders, shareholder representatives attending the meeting with the corresponding number of shares and voting rights;
- Total votes for each voting issue, including voting method, total valid, invalid votes, votes in favor, against, and abstentions; corresponding percentage of total voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting;
- Issues approved and the corresponding approval voting percentage;
- Full name and signature of the meeting's Chairperson and secretary. If the meeting's Chairperson and secretary refuse to sign the meeting minutes, the minutes shall remain valid if signed by all other members of the Board of Directors attending the meeting and contain all required contents as prescribed in this clause. The meeting minutes must clearly state the refusal of the chairperson and secretary to sign.
- The meeting minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be completed and approved before the conclusion of the meeting. The meeting's Chairperson and secretary of the meeting or other signatories of the meeting minutes shall be jointly responsible for the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the minutes.

²¹ Article 150, 152 of the Enterprise Law

- The minutes prepared in both Vietnamese and a foreign language have equal legal validity.
 In case of discrepancies between the Vietnamese and foreign language versions, the Vietnamese version shall prevail.
- 4. Resolutions, meeting minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the documents attached to the minutes (if any), and related documents accompanying the meeting notice should be disclosed in accordance with securities market information disclosure regulations and should be kept at the Company's Headquarters.
- Validity of Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders:
- a) Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders take effect from the date they are passed or from the effective date specified in the resolution. A valid resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders is binding on all absent or dissenting shareholders.
- b) Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders passed with 100% of total voting shares are considered legal and valid even if the procedures and formalities for passing such resolutions were not carried out correctly as prescribed.
- c) If any shareholder or group of shareholders requests the Court or Arbitration to annul a resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with Article 23 of this Charter, such resolutions remain in effect until the Court or Arbitration issues a different decision, except in cases where an emergency temporary measure is applied as decided by a competent authority.

Article 23. Request for annulment of a Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders²²

Within 90 (ninety) days from the date of receiving a resolution or meeting minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders or the ballot result minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders, a shareholder or group of shareholders as defined in Clause 2, Article 11 of this Charter has the right to request the Court or Arbitration to review and annul the resolution or part of the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders in the following cases:

- The procedures for convening and making decisions at the General Meeting of Shareholders seriously violate the provisions of the Law on Enterprises and this Charter, except for cases stipulated in point b, clause 5, Article 22 of this Charter.
- 2. The contents of the resolution violate the law or this Charter.

If the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders is annulled by the Court or Arbitration, the convenor of the annulled General Meeting of Shareholders may consider organizing the General Meeting of Shareholders within ninety (90) days according to the prescribed procedures.

VII. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Article 24. Candidacy and nomination of Board Members²³

1. If candidates for the Board of Directors have been determined, the Company must disclose information related to the candidates at least 10 (ten) days before the General Meeting of Shareholders on the Company's website so that shareholders can review the candidates before voting. Candidates for the Board of Directors must provide a written commitment regarding the accuracy and honesty of their disclosed personal information and pledge to perform their duties faithfully, prudently, and in the best interests of the Company if elected as Board members. The disclosed information about Board candidates includes:

²² Article 151 of the Enterprise Law

²³ Article 274 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP

- Full name, date of birth; a)
- b) Professional qualifications;
- Work experience; c)
- Other management positions (including Board memberships in other companies); d)
- Interests related to the Company and its related parties. e)
 - The Company is responsible for disclosing information about the companies where the candidate holds a Board position, other management roles, and relevant interests related to those companies (if any).
- Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding at least 10% of the total common shares 2. have the right to nominate Board candidates as follows:
- Shareholders or groups holding from 10% to under 20% of voting shares may nominate up a) to 1 candidate:
- Shareholders or groups holding from 20% to under 30% of voting shares may nominate up b) to 2 candidates:
- Shareholders or groups holding from 30% to under 40% of voting shares may nominate up C) to 3 candidates:
- Shareholders or groups holding from 40% to under 50% of voting shares may nominate up d) to 4 candidates;
- Shareholders or groups holding 50% or more of voting shares may nominate all required e) candidates.
- 3. The process for nominating Board members is as follows:
- Common shareholders forming a group to nominate Board candidates must notify the a) General Meeting of Shareholders before the meeting begins;
- If the number of nominated and self-nominated candidates is lower than the number b) shareholders have the right to nominate according to Clause 2 of this Article, the incumbent Board of Directors shall introduce additional candidates or organize nominations in accordance with the Company's Charter and Internal Corporate Governance Regulations. The Board must publicly announce additional candidates before the General Meeting of Shareholders votes for Board members in accordance with the law.
- Members of the Board of Directors must meet the following standards and conditions²⁴: 4.
- Not be subject to the restrictions specified in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on Enterprises; a)
- Have professional qualifications and experience in business management or in the b) Company's business sector and are not necessarily shareholders of the Company;
- Board members must not simultaneously serve as members of the Board in more than 5 c) other companies;
- Board members must not simultaneously be Board members, Members of the Members' d) Council, or Chief Executive Officers/(General) Directors) of another securities company;
- Be in good health, possess good moral character, honesty, and integrity; e)
- f) Meet other legal requirements.

²⁴ Clause 1, Article 155 of the Enterprise Law; Clause 2, Article 275 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP; Clause 1, Article 8 of Circular 121/2020/TT-BTC

- Independent Board members must meet the standards and conditions outlined in Clause 4
 of this Article and the following additional criteria²⁵:
- Not be currently employed by the Company, its parent company, or its subsidiary; not have worked for the Company, its parent company, or its subsidiary in the past 03 consecutive years;
- Not receive salary or remuneration from the Company, except for allowances granted to Board members by law;
- c) Not have a spouse, biological father, adoptive father, biological mother, adoptive mother, biological child, adopted child, biological sibling who is a major shareholder of the Company or who is a manager of the Company or its subsidiaries;
- d) Not directly or indirectly own at least 1% of the total voting shares of the Company;
- e) Not have served as a Board member or Supervisory Board member of the Company for at least 05 (five) consecutive years prior, unless reappointed for 02 (two) consecutive terms.
- 6. Voting for Board members must be conducted using cumulative voting, where each shareholder has a total number of votes equal to the number of shares owned multiplied by the number of Board members to be elected, and may allocate all or part of their votes to one or more candidates. The elected Board members are those receiving the highest number of votes in descending order until the required number of members is reached. If multiple candidates receive the same number of votes for the last position, another vote shall be conducted among these candidates or selection criteria from the election regulations shall be applied.²⁸

Article 25. Composition and Term of Board Members²⁷

- The Board of Directors consists of 05 (five) members.
- The term of Board members shall not exceed 05 (five) years and may be re-elected for unlimited terms. An individual may only serve as an independent Board member for a maximum of 02 (two) consecutive terms. If all Board members' terms expire simultaneously, they shall continue in office until new members are elected and assume their roles.
- The composition of the Board of Directors must ensure a balance between executive and non-executive members and include independent members to maintain the Board's independence:
- At least one-third (1/3) of the total Board members must be non-executive members (rounded down). The Company shall minimize the number of Board members holding executive positions to ensure Board independence;
- The Board must include at least one independent member.
- A Board member ceases to hold office if removed or dismissed by the General Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated in Article 30 of this Charter.

Article 26. Powers and duties of the Board of Directors²⁸

 The Board of Directors is the governing body of the Company, authorized to make decisions and perform duties on behalf of the Company, except for matters under the authority of the

²⁵ Clause 2, Article 155 of the Enterprise Law

²⁶ Clause 3, Article 148 of the Enterprise Law

²⁷ Article 154, 155 of the Enterprise Law; Clause 3, Article 41 of the Securities Law; Article 276 of Decree 155/2020/ND-

²⁸ Article 153, 159 of the Enterprise Law; Article 278 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP

General Meeting of Shareholders.

- The Board of Directors has the powers and duties prescribed by law, the Company's Charter, and the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders:
- a. Authority of the Board of Directors:
- Decide on the Company's strategy, medium-term development plans, and annual business plans;
- Decide on the sale of unsold shares within the number of shares authorized for offering for each type; decide on raising additional capital through other methods;
- Decide on the Company's bond issuance (excluding convertible bonds and bonds with warrants) in compliance with legal regulations;
- Decide on the repurchase of shares in accordance with Article 133 of the Law on Enterprises and Article 36 of the Law on Securities;
- Approve investment plans and projects within the authority and limits prescribed by law and this Charter;
- Decide on market development, marketing, and technology strategies;
- Approve contracts for purchase, sale, borrowing, lending, and other transactions valued at 35% or more of the Company's total assets as recorded in the latest financial statement, except for contracts and transactions under the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated in Point d, Clause 1, Article 14, and Clause 2, Article 43 of this Charter;
- Elect, dismiss, and remove the Chairperson of the Board of Directors; appoint, dismiss, sign, terminate contracts, reward, discipline, and determine salaries, remuneration, bonuses, and other benefits of the Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officers, Chief Accountant, Person in charge of Corporate Governance, and other positions as per the Company's internal regulations;
- Appoint representatives to the Members' Council, General Meeting of Shareholders, Board of Directors, Supervisory Board/Audit Committee, Executive Board, and Management Board of other companies, and determine their remuneration and benefits;
- Supervise and direct the Chief Executive Officer and other managers in daily business operations;
- Determine the organizational structure, establish subsidiaries, branches, representative offices, and decide on capital contributions and share purchases in other enterprises;
- Approve the agenda and materials for the General Meeting of Shareholders, convene the General Meeting of Shareholders, or collect opinions from shareholders for resolution approval;
- Board members have the right to request the Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive
 Officers, and other managers to provide information and documents regarding the Company's
 financial situation and business operations.
- Managers must promptly, fully, and accurately provide the requested information and documents to Board members.
- Decide on the issuance of the Board of Directors' operating regulations and internal corporate governance regulations after approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders; decide on the issuance of the Audit Committee's regulations and the Company's information disclosure

regulations;

- Appoint and dismiss individuals authorized by the Company to act as commercial representatives and legal counsel for the Company;
- Approve fixed asset investments not included in the annual business plan and budget, or investments exceeding 10% of the approved annual business plan and budget, in accordance with the General Meeting of Shareholders' resolutions and legal regulations;
- Approve the valuation of non-cash assets contributed to the Company in relation to the issuance of shares or bonds, including gold, land use rights, intellectual property rights, technology, and technical know-how;
- Decide on the timing and procedures for dividend payments or handling business losses;
- Establish departments or assign individuals to perform risk management and internal audit functions as required by law;
- Exercise other rights as stipulated by the Law on Enterprises, the Law on Securities, other legal regulations, and this Charter.
- Responsibilities and Obligations of the Board of Directors
- Be responsible to shareholders for the Company's activities;
- Treat all shareholders equally and respect the interests of those with related rights to the Company;
- Ensure that the Company's operations comply with legal regulations, the Charter, and the Company's internal regulations;
- Submit the audited annual financial statements to the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- Propose the dividend distribution rate;
- Recommend the restructuring, dissolution of the Company, or request for bankruptcy proceedings;
- Propose the types and total number of shares authorized for issuance for each type;
- Supervise and prevent conflicts of interest involving members of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and other managers, including the misuse of Company assets and the abuse of related-party transactions;
- Report to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the activities of the Board of Directors as required by Article 280 of Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Securities Law;
- Manage the Company in accordance with legal regulations and this Charter for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders;
- Handle the Company's complaints against managerial officers and determine the Company's representative in legal proceedings against such managerial officers;
- Allocate and utilize Company funds and distribute dividends in accordance with resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- Publicly disclose related interests and refrain from using privileged information obtained through their position for personal gain or for the benefit of other organizations or individuals;
- Submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval or ratification of matters within its authority;

 Fulfill other responsibilities and obligations as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises, the Law on Securities, other applicable laws, and this Charter.

Article 27. Remuneration, bonuses, and other benefits of Board Members²⁹

- The Company has the right to pay remuneration and bonuses to Board members based on business performance and efficiency.
- 2. Board members shall receive remuneration and bonuses. Remuneration shall be calculated based on the number of working days required to fulfill Board duties and the daily remuneration rate. The Board shall estimate remuneration for each member based on unanimous principles. The total remuneration and bonuses of the Board shall be determined by the General Meeting of Shareholders at the annual meeting.
- 3. The remuneration of each Board member shall be accounted for as business expenses of the Company in accordance with corporate income tax regulations, recorded as a separate item in the Company's annual financial statements, and reported to the General Meeting of Shareholders at the annual meeting.
- 4. Board members who hold executive positions, serve on Board committees, or perform duties beyond those of a regular Board member may receive additional remuneration in the form of a fixed lump sum, salary, commission, profit-sharing, or other forms as decided by the Board.
- Board members shall be reimbursed for all reasonable travel, accommodation, and other
 expenses incurred in the course of fulfilling their Board duties, including expenses related to
 attending the General Meeting of Shareholders, Board meetings, or Board committee
 meetings.
- Board members may be covered by liability insurance purchased by the Company upon approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders. This insurance does not cover liabilities related to legal violations or breaches of the Company's Charter by Board members.

Article 28. Chairperson of the Board of Directors30

- The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected by the Board from among its members and may be dismissed or removed by the Board.
- The Chairperson of the Board shall not concurrently hold the position of Chief Executive Officer.
- The Chairperson of the Board has the following powers and duties:
- a) Develop the Board's activity program and plans;
- Prepare meeting agendas, content, and materials; convene, preside over, and chair Board meetings;
- Organize the adoption of Board resolutions and decisions;
- d) Supervise the implementation of Board resolutions and decisions;
- e) Chair the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- f) Conduct written consultations with Board members when Board meetings are not held;
- g) Approve and sign Board-authorized documents; oversee or organize the oversight of their

m

²⁹ Article 163 of the Enterprise Law

³⁰ Article 156 of the Enterprise Law; Clause 2, Article 275 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP

implementation;

- Decide and act on matters authorized by the Board;
- i) Develop and assign Board members to inspect and supervise Company activities;
- j) Inspect and supervise all Company operations and suspend or revoke executive decisions if they violate laws, the Charter, General Meeting of Shareholders' resolutions, or Board resolutions and decisions:
- Ensure the Board submits the Company's annual financial statements, business reports, audit reports, and Board reports to shareholders at the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- Other rights and responsibilities as stipulated by the Law on Enterprises, this Charter, and the Company's internal regulations.
- If the Chairperson resigns, is removed, or dismissed, the Board must elect a replacement within 10 days of receiving the resignation or dismissal decision.
- 5. If the Chairperson is absent or unable to perform their duties, they must delegate authority in writing to another Board member. If no delegation occurs, or if the Chairperson is deceased, missing, detained, serving a prison sentence, undergoing mandatory rehabilitation, restricted or legally incapacitated, or prohibited by court order from holding office, the remaining Board members shall elect a replacement Chairperson by majority vote until the Board makes a formal decision.

Article 29. Board Meetings31

- 1. The Chairperson shall be elected at the first Board meeting within 07 business days after the Board election. This meeting is convened and chaired by the member with the highest or equal highest vote count.—In case there is more than one member with the highest number of votes or the same percentage of votes, the members shall vote by majority rule to select 01 (one) of them to convene a meeting of the Board of Directors.
- The Board must meet at least once per quarter and may convene extraordinary meetings.
- 3. The Chairperson shall convene extraordinary Board meetings in the following cases:
- a) At the request of an independent Board member;
- b) At the request of the Chief Executive Officer or at least 05 other Company executives;
- At the request of at least 02 (two) Board members.
- Requests under Clause 3 must be in writing, specifying the purpose, discussion topics, and decisions under the Board's authority.
- The Chairperson must convene a Board meeting within 07 business days of receiving a valid request under Clause 3. If the Chairperson fails to convene the meeting, they shall be held responsible for any Company damages, and the requesting party may convene the meeting instead.
- 6. The Chairperson or the convening party must send meeting invitations at least 03 business days before the meeting. The invitation must specify the time, place, agenda, discussion topics, and decisions. The invitation must be accompanied by relevant materials and voting ballots.
- 7. Meeting invitations may be sent via mail, phone, fax, electronic means, or other methods as

SHS CHARTER - May 2025

³¹ Article 157 of the Enterprise Law

- determined by the Board, ensuring delivery to each Board member's registered contact information.
- 8. A Board meeting is valid when at least three-fourths (3/4) of its members attend. In case the meeting convened in accordance with the provisions of this clause does not have enough members to attend the meeting as prescribed, it shall be convened for the second time within 07 days from the date of the first scheduled meeting. In this case, the meeting shall be held if more than half of the members of the Board of Directors attend the meeting.
- A Board member is considered to have attended and voted in a meeting in the following cases:
- a) Attending and voting in person;
- Authorizing another person to attend and vote under Clause 11 of this Article;
- c) Attending and voting via online conferencing, electronic voting, or other electronic means;
- d) Sending voting ballots via mail, fax, email, or other methods as determined by the Board.
- 10. Voting ballots sent via mail must be sealed and delivered to the Company's Chairperson at least 01 hour before the meeting. Ballots shall only be opened in the presence of all attendees.
- Board members must attend all Board meetings. They may authorize another person to attend and vote only with the majority consent of the Board.
- Voting:
- Except as provided in item b of this clause, each member of the Board of Directors shall have one voting card.
- A member of the Board of Directors shall not vote on contracts, transactions, or proposals in which the member or their related parties have an interest, where such interest conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the Company;
- c) As specified in item d of this clause, if an issue arises during a Board of Directors meeting regarding the degree of interest of a member of the Board of Directors or related to the voting rights of a member, and these issues are not resolved by the voluntary waiver of the member's voting rights, the matter shall be referred to the meeting chairperson. The decision of the meeting's Chairperson related to all other members of the Board of Directors, shall be considered the final decision, unless the nature or scope of the member's related interest has not been appropriately disclosed;
- d) A member of the Board of Directors benefiting from a contract as stipulated in Article 43 of this Charter will be considered to have a significant interest in that contract.
- 13. Disclosure of Interests:

A member of the Board of Directors who directly or indirectly benefits from a contract or transaction that has been signed or is about to be signed with the Company, and who is aware of having an interest in it, must disclose the nature and content of that interest during the meeting in which the Board of Directors first reviews the issue of entering into the contract or transaction.

This member may disclose this interest during the first meeting of the Board of Directors held after the member becomes aware that they have or will have an interest in the related transaction or contract.

14. Board resolutions and decisions are approved by the majority of attending members. In case

pr

of a tie, the Chairperson's vote decides the outcome.

Article 30. Dismissal, removal, replacement, and supplementation of the Board of Directors' members³²

- The General Meeting of Shareholders shall dismiss a member of the Board of Directors in the following cases:
- The member no longer meets the standards and conditions prescribed in Article 24 of this Charter;
- The member submits a resignation letter and it is approved.
- The General Meeting of Shareholders shall remove a member of the Board of Directors in the following cases:
 - The member fails to participate in the activities of the Board of Directors for six (06) consecutive months, except in force majeure cases.
- When deemed necessary, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall decide to replace members of the Board of Directors; dismiss or remove members of the Board of Directors beyond the cases specified in Clauses 1 and 2 of this Article.
- 4. The Board of Directors must convene a General Meeting of Shareholders to elect additional members of the Board of Directors in the following cases:
- a) The number of members of the Board of Directors decreases by more than one-third (1/3) of the number specified in Clause 1, Article 25 of this Charter.
 - In this case, the Board of Directors must convene a General Meeting of Shareholders within sixty (60) days from the date the number of members decreases by more than one-third (1/3);
- The number of independent members of the Board of Directors decreases, failing to ensure the ratio prescribed in Clause 3, Article 25 of this Charter;
- c) Except for the cases specified in Points a and b of this Clause, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall elect a new member to replace the dismissed or removed member of the Board of Directors at the nearest meeting.

Article 31. Committees under the Board of Directors

- The Board of Directors may establish committees responsible for development policies, human resources, remuneration, internal audit, and risk management. The number and structure of members of the committees shall be decided by the Board of Directors from time to time.
- The operation of the committees must comply with the regulations of the Board of Directors.
 A committee's resolution shall be valid only when a majority of its members attend and vote in favor at the committee meeting.
- The implementation of decisions made by the Board of Directors or its committees must comply with current legal regulations and the provisions of this Charter and the Company's internal governance regulations.

SHS CHARTER - May 2025

³² Article 160 of the Enterprise Law

Article 32. Person in charge of Corporate Governance³³

- The Board of Directors of the Company must appoint at least one (01) Person in charge of Corporate Governance to support corporate governance activities.
- The Person in charge of Corporate Governance shall not simultaneously work for an approved audit organization conducting audits of the Company's financial statements.
- 3. The Person in charge of Corporate Governance has the following rights and duties:
- Advising the Board of Directors on organizing the General Meeting of Shareholders according to regulations and matters related to the Company and shareholders;
- Preparing meetings of the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of Shareholders as required by the Board of Directors;
- c) Advising on the procedures of meetings;
- d) Attending meetings;
- Advising on the procedures for drafting resolutions of the Board of Directors in compliance with the law;
- Providing financial information, copies of Board of Directors meeting minutes, and other information to members of the Board of Directors;
- Monitoring and reporting to the Board of Directors on the Company's information disclosure activities;
- Acting as the primary liaison with stakeholders;
- Keeping information confidential according to legal regulations, this Charter, and the Company's internal governance regulations;
- Other rights and duties as prescribed by law, this Charter, and the Company's internal governance regulations.

VIII. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND OTHER EXECUTIVES

Article 33. Organizational Management Structure

The Company's management system must ensure that the management team is accountable to the Board of Directors and is subject to the supervision and direction of the Board of Directors in the Company's daily business operations. The Company's executives include the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Deputy CEOs, Chief Accountant, and other positions as determined and appointed by the Board of Directors from time to time. The Board of Directors shall decide the number and qualifications of executives in accordance with practical management and operational requirements. The executives are responsible for supporting the Company in achieving its set operational and organizational goals.

Article 34. Number, standards, and conditions of Company Executives³⁴

- The Board of Directors shall appoint one (01) member of the Board of Directors or hire another individual as the CEO. The term of office of the CEO shall not exceed five (05) years and may be reappointed for an unlimited number of terms.
- The CEO must meet the following standards and conditions:
- a) Not fall under the categories specified in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on Enterprises;

pr

³³ Article 281 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP

³⁴ Article 162, 163 of the Enterprise Law; Article 74 of the Securities Law; Article 10 of Circular 121-2020/TT-BTC

- b) Not have family relationships with the Company's managers; Not have family relationships with the managers, supervisors of the parent company;
- c) Possess professional qualifications and experience in the Company's business management;
- Not simultaneously work for another securities company, fund management company, or other enterprise;
- Not be a member of the Board of Directors or a member of the Members' Council of another securities company;
- f) Meet the standards specified in Clause 5, Article 74 of the Law on Securities;
- g) Other standards as prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.
- 3. The Deputy CEO in charge of operations must meet the standards specified in Clause 5, Article 74 of the Law on Securities; shall not simultaneously work for another securities company, fund management company, or other enterprise; and must meet other standards as prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.
- The CEO shall receive a salary and bonus. The salary and bonus of the CEO shall be determined by the Board of Directors.
- The salary of executives shall be accounted for in the Company's business expenses as prescribed by tax laws and shall be presented as a separate item in the Company's annual financial statements, which must be reported to the General Meeting of Shareholders at the annual meeting.
- The Board of Directors may dismiss the CEO when the majority of the voting members of the Board of Directors attending the meeting approve and appoint a new CEO as a replacement.

Article 35. Duties and Powers of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)35

- The CEO is responsible for managing the Company's daily business operations; is subject to supervision by the Board of Directors and is accountable to the Board and the law for the execution of assigned rights and obligations.
- The CEO has the following rights and obligations:
- Decide on matters related to the Company's daily business operations that do not fall under the Board of Directors' authority, including signing financial and commercial contracts on behalf of the Company, organizing and managing the Company's day-to-day operations in accordance with best management practices;
- b) Organize the implementation of resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors;
- Organize the execution of the Company's business plans and investment strategies;
- d) Propose organizational structure plans and internal management regulations for the Company;
- Appoint, dismiss, and remove managerial positions within the Company, except for those under the Board of Directors' authority;
- Determine salaries and other benefits for employees in the Company, including management personnel within the CEO's authority;
- g) Recruit employees;
- Propose dividend distribution plans or solutions for handling business losses;

³⁵ Clause 3, Article 162 of the Enterprise Law

 Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law, this Charter, resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, and resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors.

Article 36. Internal Control Unit under the CEO³⁶

- The Company must establish an internal control system that includes an organizational structure, internal processes, and regulations applicable to all positions, units, departments, and activities of the Company to ensure the following objectives:
- The Company's operations comply with the provisions of the Securities Law and relevant legal documents;
- Ensuring customers' rights and interests;
- The Company operates safely and efficiently; assets and resources are protected, managed, and utilized effectively and securely;
- d) Financial and management information systems are truthful, reasonable, complete, and timely; financial reporting by the Company is accurate and transparent.
- The Internal Control Unit is responsible for ensuring compliance with the provisions stated in Article 12 of Circular 121/2020/TT-BTC.
- Personnel in the Internal Control Unit must meet the standards and conditions stipulated in Article 12 of Circular 121/2020/TT-BTC.

IX. AUDIT COMMITTEE UNDER THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Article 37. Candidacy and nomination of Audit Committee Members 37

- The Chairperson of the Audit Committee and other members of the Audit Committee are nominated by the Board of Directors and must not be Company executives.
- The appointment, dismissal, and removal of the Chairperson and other members of the Audit Committee must be approved by the Board of Directors in its meetings.

Article 38. Composition of the Audit Committee³⁸

- The Audit Committee consists of at least two (2) members. The number of Audit Committee
 members is determined by the Board of Directors periodically. The Chairperson of the Audit
 Committee must be an independent Board of Directors' member. Other members of the Audit
 Committee must be non-executive Board of Directors' members.
- Members of the Audit Committee must have knowledge of accounting and auditing, possess general legal and business knowledge, and must not fall under the following circumstances:
- a) Working in the Company's accounting or finance department;
- b) Being a member or employee of an approved auditing organization that audited the Company's financial statements within the last three (3) consecutive years.
- The Chairperson of the Audit Committee must have a university degree or higher in one of the fields of economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law, or business administration.

³⁶ Article 12 of Circular 121/2020/TT-BTC

³⁷ Article 282 of Decree 155/2020/NÐ-CP

³⁸ Article 161 of the Enterprise Law; Article 282 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP

Article 39. Rights and Duties of the Audit Committee 39

The Audit Committee has the rights and duties as stipulated in Article 161 of the Enterprise Law and the following responsibilities:

- Oversee the accuracy of the Company's financial statements and official financial disclosures;
- Review the internal control and risk management systems;
- Review related-party transactions requiring approval from the Board of Directors or the General Meeting of Shareholders and provide recommendations on transactions that need such approvals;
- Supervise the Company's Internal Audit Department;
- Recommend an independent audit firm, determine audit fees, and establish contract terms
 with the audit firm for Board of Directors approval before presenting them to the General
 Meeting of Shareholders for ratification;
- Monitor and evaluate the independence and objectivity of the audit firm and the effectiveness
 of the audit process, especially when the Company uses non-audit services from the same
 firm;
- 7. Supervise the Company's compliance with legal regulations, regulatory requirements, and internal regulations. The Audit Committee has the right to access documents related to the Company's operations, communicate with other Board of Directors' members, the CEO, the Chief Accountant, and other executives to collect information for its activities.
- Request representatives from the approved audit firm to attend and respond to issues related to audited financial reports at Audit Committee meetings.
- Use external legal, accounting, or other advisory services when necessary.
- Develop and present risk identification and management policies to the BoD; propose solutions to mitigate risks arising in the Company's operations.
- 11. Prepare and submit a written report to the Board of Directors' when detecting non-compliance by Board of Directors' members, the CEO, or other executives as stipulated in the Enterprise Law and this Charter.
- Develop the Audit Committee's Operational Regulations and present them to the Board of Directors for approval.
- Other rights and obligations as prescribed in this Charter, the Audit Committee's regulations, and relevant laws.

Article 40. Meetings of the Audit Committee

- The Audit Committee must meet at least twice (2) a year. The minutes of the meetings must be detailed, clear, and fully recorded. The meeting recorder and all attending Audit Committee members must sign the minutes.
- The Audit Committee passes resolutions by voting at meetings, collecting written opinions, or other methods specified in its operational regulations.
- Each Audit Committee member has one (1) vote. Decisions of the Audit Committee are
 passed if the majority of attending members approve them; in the event of a tie, the final
 decision rests with the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

³⁹ Article 161 of the Enterprise Law; Article 283 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP

Article 41. Reporting by Independent Board Members in the Audit Committee at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders⁴⁰

- Independent Board of Directors' members in the Audit Committee are responsible for reporting their activities at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
- The report of independent Board of Directors' members in the Audit Committee at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders must include the following contents:
- Remuneration, operational costs, and other benefits of the Audit Committee and each of its members as stipulated by the Enterprise Law and this Charter;
- b) Summary of Audit Committee meetings and their conclusions and recommendations;
- Supervision results on financial reports, operational status, and financial position of the Company;
- d) Assessment reports on transactions between the Company, subsidiaries, or other companies controlled by the Company (over 50% equity ownership) with Board of Directors' members, the CEO, other executives, and related persons of these individuals; transactions between the Company and businesses where Board of Directors' members, the CEO, or other executives were founding members or managers within the last three (3) years before the transaction date;
- e) Assessment results on the Company's internal control and risk management system;
- f) Supervision results on the Board of Directors, the CEO, and other executives;
- g) Evaluation of the coordination between the Audit Committee, the BOD, the CEO, and shareholders.

X. RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOD'S MEMBERS, CEO, OTHER EXECUTIVES

Board of Directors' members, the CEO, and other executives must perform their duties, including those in BODsubcommittees, honestly and diligently in the best interests of the Company.

Article 42. Honesty and avoidance of Conflicts of Interest⁴¹

- Board of Directors' members, the CEO, and other executives must disclose their related interests as required by the Enterprise Law and related legal documents.
- Board of Directors' members, the CEO, and other executives and their related persons may only use information obtained through their positions for the benefit of the Company.
- 3. Board of Directors' members, the CEO, and other executives must notify the Board of Directors in writing of transactions between the Company, subsidiaries, or other companies controlled by the Company (over 50% equity ownership) and themselves or their related persons as stipulated by the Law. For the above transactions approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders or the Board of Directors, the Company shall disclose information about these resolutions/decisions in accordance with the provisions of the securities law on information disclosure.
- Board of Directors' members cannot vote on transactions that benefit them or their related persons, as per the Enterprise Law and this Charter.
- Board of Directors' members, the CEO, and other executives and related persons of these entities shall not use or disclose to others inside information to carry out related transactions.

N.F G .

T.

⁴⁰ Article 284 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP

⁴¹ Article 291 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP

Article 43. Approval of contracts and transactions between the Company and related Persons⁴²

- The General Meeting of Shareholders or the Board of Directors must approve contracts and transactions between the Company and the following related persons:
- Shareholders, authorized representatives of organizational shareholders who own more than 10% of the total common shares of the Company, and their related persons;
- Board of Directors' members, the CEO, other managers, and their related persons;
- c) Enterprises that the Board of Directors' members, the CEO, and other managers of the Company are required to disclose according to Clause 2, Article 164 of the Enterprise Law.
- 2. The General Meeting of Shareholders must approve the following contracts and transactions:
- a) Contracts and transactions defined in Clause 1 of this Article that have a value of at least 35% or transactions that lead to a total transaction value within 12 months from the date of the first transaction reaching 35% or more of the Company's total assets as recorded in the most recent financial statements;
- b) Contracts, loan, lending, or asset sale transactions with a value exceeding 10% of the Company's total assets (as recorded in the most recent financial statements) between the Company and a shareholder owning at least 51% of total voting shares or a related person of such shareholder.
- In the case specified in Clause 2 of this Article, the Company's representative signing the
 contract or transaction must notify the Board of Directors of the related parties involved and
 provide a draft contract or a summary of the key terms of the transaction.
 - The Board of Directors will present the draft contract or transaction explanation at the General Meeting of Shareholders or collect shareholders' written opinions. In such cases, shareholders with interests related to the parties in the contract or transaction are not entitled to vote.
- 4. The Board of Directors must approve contracts and transactions under Clause 1 of this Article that do not fall within the jurisdiction of the General Meeting of Shareholders, as specified in Clause 2 of this Article. In this case, the Company's representative signing the contract or transaction must notify the Board of Directors' members of the related parties and provide the draft contract or a summary of the transaction. The Board of Directors' must decide on the approval of the contract or transaction within 15 days of receiving the notification. The Board of Directors' members with related interests in the contract or transaction are not entitled to vote.
- 5. Contracts and transactions are invalid as determined by a court ruling and must be handled per the law if they are signed in violation of this Article. The signatory of the contract or transaction, shareholders, Board of Directors' members, or the CEO involved must jointly compensate for any damages incurred and return any benefits obtained from executing the contract or transaction to the Company.
- The Company must disclose related contracts and transactions as required by law.

Article 44. Liability for damages and compensation

 Board of Directors' members, the CEO, and other executives who violate their duty of honesty and diligence or fail to fulfill their obligations must be held liable for any damages caused by

⁴² Article 167 of the Enterprise Law; Article 293 of Decree 155/2020/NĐ-CP

their violations.

- 2. The Company shall compensate individuals who have been, are, or may become involved in complaints, lawsuits, or prosecutions (including civil, administrative, and non-litigation cases initiated by parties other than the Company) if such individuals were or are BoD members, members of the Supervisory Board, the CEO, other executives, employees, or authorized representatives acting on behalf of the Company, have acted honestly, diligently, in the best interests of the Company, in compliance with the law, and without evidence proving a breach of duty.
- Compensation costs include judgments, fines, actual payments incurred (including attorney
 fees) to settle such cases within the limits permitted by law. The Company may purchase
 insurance for these individuals to cover the aforementioned liabilities.

XI. RIGHT TO INSPECT THE COMPANY'S RECORDS AND DOCUMENTS

Article 45. Right to inspect records and documents

- Common shareholders have the right to inspect company records and documents as follows:
- Common shareholders have the right to review, inspect, and extract information about names and contact addresses from the list of shareholders with voting rights; request corrections to inaccurate information; review, inspect, extract, or copy the Company's Charter, General Meeting of Shareholders minutes, and resolutions;
- b) Shareholders or groups of shareholders owning at least 5% of the total common shares have the right to review, inspect, extract minutes and resolutions of the Board of Directors, semiannual and annual financial statements, contracts, transactions requiring Board of Directors approval, and other documents, except those related to trade secrets and business secrets of the Company.
- If an authorized representative of a shareholder or group of shareholders requests to inspect records and documents, they must provide a power of attorney from the shareholders they represent or a notarized copy of the authorization.
- Board of Directors' members, the CEO, and other executives have the right to inspect the Company's shareholder register, shareholder list, books, and other records for purposes related to their positions, provided that such information is kept confidential.
- 4. The Company must maintain this Charter, any amendments, the Enterprise Registration Certificate, regulations, documents proving ownership of assets, resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, minutes of meetings of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, reports from the Board of Directors, annual financial statements, accounting books, and other documents as required by law.
- The Company's Charter are be disclosed in accordance with the law.

XII. EMPLOYEES AND TRADE UNIONS

Article 46. Employees and Trade Unions

- The CEO must prepare plans for the Board of Directors' approval regarding recruitment, termination, salaries, social insurance, welfare, rewards, and discipline of employees and Company executives.
- The CEO must prepare plans for the Board of Directors' approval regarding the Company's relations with trade unions based on best management standards, practices, and policies, as stipulated in this Charter, the Company's regulations, and applicable laws.

XIII. FUNDS ALLOCATION AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

Article 47. Funds allocation

The allocation of funds is carried out per legal regulations and determined annually by the General Meeting of Shareholders after fulfilling financial obligations to the State.

Article 48. Profit distribution

- The General Meeting of Shareholders decides the annual dividend payment and method of payment from the Company's retained earnings.
- The Company does not pay interest on dividends or any other payments related to any class of shares.
- The Board of Directors' may propose to the General Meeting of Shareholders the payment of dividends in whole or in part by shares, and the Board of Directors is responsible for executing such a decision.
- 4. If dividends or other payments related to shares are made in cash, the Company must pay in Vietnamese dong. Payments can be made directly or through banks based on the shareholder's provided bank account details. If the Company transfers the funds to the shareholder's provided account but the shareholder does not receive the money, the Company is not responsible for the amount of money the Company has transferred to this shareholder.
- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law and the Securities Law, the Board of Directors determines a specific date to finalize the shareholder list. Based on this date, registered shareholders or holders of other securities are entitled to receive dividends in cash or shares, receive notifications, or other documents.
- Other matters related to profit distribution must comply with legal regulations.

XIV. BANK ACCOUNTS, FISCAL YEAR, AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

Article 49. Bank accounts

- The Company opens accounts at Vietnamese banks or branches of foreign banks operating in Vietnam.
- With prior approval from the competent authority, the Company may open bank accounts abroad if necessary, per legal regulations.
- The Company carries out all payments and accounting transactions through accounts in Vietnamese dong or foreign currencies at its designated banks.

Article 50. Fiscal year

The Company's fiscal year begins on January 1 and ends on December 31 each year. The first fiscal year starts from the date of issuance of the Securities Business License and ends on December 31 of that year.

Article 51. Accounting system

- The Company applies the Vietnamese Accounting System (VAS) or other special accounting systems issued or approved by competent authorities.
- The Company maintains its accounting records in Vietnamese and keeps financial records in compliance with accounting and other relevant laws. These records must be accurate, up-todate, systematic, and sufficient to demonstrate and justify the Company's transactions.
- 3. The Company uses the Vietnamese Dong as the accounting currency. If the Company

Ē

= I TAMOSIT

primarily engages in transactions using a specific foreign currency, it may choose that currency as its accounting unit, bear responsibility for this choice under the law, and notify the tax authority.

XV. FINANCIAL REPORTS, ANNUAL REPORTS, AND INFORMATION DISCLOSURE RESPONSIBILITIES

Article 52. Annual, semi-annual, and quarterly financial reports

- The Company must prepare annual financial statements, which must be audited in accordance with the law. The Company must disclose its audited annual financial statements in compliance with the legal requirements for information disclosure in the securities market and submit them to competent state authorities.
- The annual financial statements must include all reports, appendices, and explanations as required by enterprise accounting laws. The financial statements must accurately and objectively reflect the Company's business operations.
- The Company must prepare and disclose its reviewed semi-annual financial statements and quarterly financial statements in accordance with legal regulations on information disclosure in the securities market and submit them to competent state authorities.

Article 53. Annual reports

The Company must prepare and publish annual reports following the legal regulations on securities and the stock market.

Article 54. Information disclosure responsibilities

- The Company must disclose information regularly and on an ad-hoc basis in accordance with securities and stock market laws or upon request from competent state authorities, ensuring full and timely compliance. The Company is responsible for the accuracy and truthfulness of its disclosed information and reports.
- Information disclosure must be conducted in a manner that ensures fair and equal access for shareholders and the investment public at the same time. The language used in disclosures must be clear, easy to understand, and must not mislead shareholders or investors.

XVI. COMPANY AUDIT

Article 55, Audit

- The General Meeting of Shareholders appoints an independent auditing firm or approves a list of independent auditing firms and authorizes the Board of Directors to select one of them to audit the Company's financial statements for the next fiscal year under agreed terms and conditions with the Board of Directors.
- The audit report must be attached to the Company's annual financial statements.
- The independent auditor conducting the audit of the Company's financial statements has the
 right to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders, receive notifications and relevant
 information about the meeting, and provide opinions on matters related to the audit of the
 Company's financial statements.

XVII. COMPANY SEAL

Article 56. Company seal

 The Company's seal may include a physical seal made by an engraving facility or a digital signature-based seal in accordance with electronic transaction laws.

- The Board of Directors determines the type, quantity, form, and content of the Company's seal, including those used by its branches and representative offices.
- The Board of Directors and the CEO manage and use the Company's seal in compliance with applicable laws.

XVIII. REORGANIZATION AND DISSOLUTION OF THE COMPANY

Article 57. Reorganization of the Company

The division, separation, merger, consolidation, or transformation of the Company's type shall be conducted in accordance with the law.

Article 58. Dissolution of the Company

- The Company may be dissolved in the following cases:
- Upon the expiration of its operating term as stated in this Charter, without an extension decision;
- b) By resolution or decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- Upon revocation of its Enterprise Registration Certificate, except in cases where the Tax Administration Law provides otherwise;
- d) Other cases as prescribed by law.
- The early dissolution of the Company (including any extended operating term) is decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders and executed by the Board of Directors. This dissolution decision must be notified to or approved by competent authorities if required by law.

Article 59. Extension of operations

- The Board of Directors shall convene a General Meeting of Shareholders at least 07 months before the expiration of the Company's operating term for shareholders to vote on extending the Company's operations based on the Board of Directors' proposal.
- The extension is approved when shareholders representing at least 65% of the total voting shares at the General Meeting of Shareholders vote in favor.

Article 60. Liquidation

- 1. At least 06 months before the expiration of the Company's operating term or upon a dissolution decision, the Board of Directors must establish a Liquidation Committee comprising three members, including two members appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders and one member appointed by the Board of Directors from an independent auditing firm. The Liquidation Committee shall prepare its operating regulations. Members may be selected from the Company's employees or independent experts. All liquidation-related expenses shall be prioritized for payment before any other Company debts.
- The Liquidation Committee must report its establishment and commencement of operations to the Business Registration Authority. From this point, the Liquidation Committee represents the Company in all matters related to liquidation before the Court and administrative authorities.
- Funds obtained from liquidation shall be distributed in the following order:
- a) Liquidation expenses;
- Salaries, severance allowances, social insurance, and other employee benefits as per collective labor agreements and labor contracts;

- c) Taxes;
- d) Other Company's debts;
- Any remaining assets after settling the debts from items (a) to (d) shall be distributed to shareholders, with preference shares being paid first.

XIX. INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Article 61. Internal dispute resolution

- In case of disputes or complaints related to the Company's operations, shareholder rights and obligations as prescribed by the Enterprise Law, this Charter, other legal regulations, or agreements between:
- A shareholder and the Company;
- A shareholder and the Board of Directors, the CEO, or other executives;
 - The involved parties must first attempt to resolve the dispute through negotiation and mediation. Unless the dispute involves the Board of Directors or the Board of Directors' Chairperson, the Board of Directors' Chairperson shall mediate the dispute, requiring each party to submit relevant information within 15 business days from the dispute's occurrence. If the dispute involves the Board of Directors or the Board of Directors' Chairperson, any party may request or appoint an independent expert to act as a mediator.
- If no mediation agreement is reached within 06 weeks from the start of the mediation process, or if the mediator's decision is not accepted, any party may submit the dispute to Arbitration or Court.
- Each party shall bear its own costs related to the negotiation and mediation process. The
 payment of court fees shall follow the court's ruling.

XX. AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE CHARTER

Article 62. Company Charter

- Amendments and supplements to this Charter must be reviewed and decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
- If any legal provisions relevant to the Company's operations are not covered in this Charter or if new legal regulations differ from this Charter, those legal provisions shall prevail and regulate the Company's activities.

XXI. EFFECTIVE DATE

Article 63. Effective Date

 This Charter consists of XXI sections and 63 Articles, unanimously approved by the Board of Directors in Resolution No. 03-2025/NQ-HĐQT dated May 29th, 2025 (authorized by the General Meeting of Shareholders under Resolution No. 01-2024/NQ-ĐHĐCĐ dated May 15th, 2024, and Resolution No. 01-2025/NQ-ĐHĐCĐ dated April 10th, 2025), and its full validity is jointly approved in these Resolutions.

- This Charter is prepared in three (03) copies, each having equal legal validity, and is kept at the Company's headquarters.
- 3. This Charter is the sole and official version of the Company.

Copies or extracts of this Charter are valid only if signed by the Board of Directors' Chairperson or at least half of the total Board of Directors' members.

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE &
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CÔNG TY
CỔ CÔNG TY
CỔ PHẨN
CHÚNG KHOÁN W
SẢI GÒN
HẢ NỘI

NGUYEN CHI THANH

*

APPENDIX

DETAILS OF THE COMPANY'S CHARTER CAPITAL FROM ESTABLISHMENT TO PRESENT AND THE SHAREHOLDING RATIO OF FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS AT THE COMPANY'S ESTABLISHMENT DATE

1) Details of the Company's Charter Capital from establishment to present:

No.	YEAR	CHARTER CAPITAL (VND)	REMARK Company Establishment		
1	2007	350,000,000,000			
2	2009	410,629,960,000	Issuance of bonus shares to increase charter capital from capital surplus		
3	2010	1,000,000,000,000	Issuance of shares to increase charter capital for existing shareholders, employees, and potential partners		
4	2018	1,053,956,740,000	Issuance of shares to swap SHBS shares for the merger with SHB Securities JSC		
5	2019	2,072,682,010,000	Issuance of shares to increase charter capital by paying dividends in shares and offering to existing shareholders, employees, and potential partners		
6	2021	3,252,650,270,000	Issuance of shares to increase charter capital from owner's equity and offering to existing shareholders and employees		
7	2022	6,505,300,540,000	Additional public offering to existing shareholders		
8	2022	8,131,567,480,000	Issuance of SHS shares to pay dividends for 2021 and increase equity capital from owner's equity		
9	2025	8,944,622,200,000	Shares issuing to pay the dividends of the year 2023 and shares issuing to increase charter capital from equity.		

2) Information about Founding Shareholders and the percentage of shares owned by Founding Shareholders at the date of establishment of the Company:

No.	NAME	BUSINESS REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE, DATE OF ISSUE, PLACE OF ISSUE	ADDRESS	OWNED SHARES	VALUE (Dong)	RAT IO (%)
1	T&T Group JSC	0103020950, December 09, 2008, Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment	No.18 Hang Chuoi Street, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam	5,250,000	52,500,000,000	15
2	Saigon - Hanoi Commercial JS Bank (SHB)	0103026080, July 29, 2008, Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment	No. 77, Tran Hung Dao St., Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam	3,500,000	35,000,000,000	10
3	Vietnam National Coal and Mineral Industries Holding Corporation Limited (VCM)	0106000574, February 09, 2006, Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment	No. 226 Le Dung St., Dong Da District, Hanoi, Vietnam	3,500,000	35,000,000,000	10
4	Vietnam Rubber Industrial Park and Urban Development JSC (VINARUCO)	0403000336, December 18, 2007, Hai Duong Department of Planning and Investment	No. 165 Bach Dang Road, Tran Phu Ward, Hai Duong City, Hai Duong Province, Vietnam	3,500,000	35,000,000,000	10
5	Vietnam Rubber Group (VGR)	4106000341, March 16, 2007, Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment	No. 236 Nam Ky Khoi Nghia, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam	1,750,000	17,500,000,000	05
6	Hanoi Trading Service Co., Ltd.	044981, April 11, 2007, Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment	No. 17 Phu Đong Thien Vuong St., Ngo Thi Nham Ward, Hai Ba Trung, Hanoi, Vietnam	1,750,000	17,500,000,000	05
7	An Sinh Industrial Investment JSC	0103021662, January 11, 2008, Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment	No. 122 Hoang Ngan St., Trung Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi, Vietnam	1,750,000	17,500,000,000	05